
MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

CALL AND NOTICE OF A SPECIAL MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

DISTRICT OFFICE 

14451 CEDARWOOD STREET 

WESTMINSTER, CA 

December 6, 2024 

12:00 P.M. 

Notice is hereby given that Mark Nguyen, President of the Midway City Sanitary District 

Board of Directors has requested a Special Meeting of the Midway City Sanitary District Board 

of Directors, to be held at 12:00 PM on Friday, December 6, 2024, in the District Offices located 

at 14451 Cedarwood �treet, Westminster, CA. 

The purpose of said meeting and the business to be conducted is described in the agenda. 

Cynt 1ia Olsder 

Board Secretary 

Page 1 of 1 



MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
DISTRICT OFFICE 

14451 CEDARWOOD STREET 

WESTMINSTER, CA 

Friday, December 6, 2024 
12:00P.M. 

A G E N D A  

OUR MISSION STATEMENT 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES OF MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 

DISTRICT WORK DILIGENTLY TO PROVIDE SEWER AND SOLID WASTE 

SERVICES TO THE RESIDENTS OF THE DISTRICT. OUR TOP PRIORITY IS TO 

ACCOMPLISH THIS IN AN ETHICAL, EFFICIENT, AND COST-EFFECTIVE 

MANNER THAT WILL PROTECT THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF THOSE WE 

SERVE. 

In accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Sections 54956 and 54954.3, 
this Agenda is posted not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting date and time above. All written 
materials relating to each agenda item are available for public inspection in the office of the Board 
Secretary. 

Please Note: The District complies with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Anyone needing special assistance please contact the District's Secretaty at (714) 893-
3553, at least one business day prior to the meeting so that we may accommodate you. 

1. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

2. ROLL CALL

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS:

All persons wishing to address the Board on specific Agenda items or matters of general
interest should do so at this time. As determined by the President, speakers may be deferred
until the specific item is taken for discussion and remarks may be limited to three (3) minutes.

Page I of2 



4. NEW BUSINESS

A. RESOLUTION NO. 2024-26 (Roll Call Vole}

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY CITY
SANITARY DISTRICT, OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, DECLARING
RES UL TS OF THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024 ELECTION OF DISTRICT DIRECTORS

B. Consider the Annual Board Reorganization, Including Election of Officers, Board Committee
Appointments, and Appointments to Outside Boards and Committees

5. ADJOURNMENT

Page 2 of2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-26 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY 
CITY SANITARY DISTRICT, OF ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 
DECLARING RES UL TS OF THE NOVEMBER 5, 2024 ELECTION OF 
DISTRICT DIRECTORS 

WHEREAS, the District election of the MIDWAY CITY SANITARY 

DISTRICT was conducted on November 5, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, the County Clerk has canvassed the returns of said election 

and has declared the results thereof to be as shown on the Certificate attached 

hereto: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Midway City Sanitary 

District does hereby resolve, order and determine as follows: 

Section 1: That the two candidates receiving the highest total of the 

votes cast for the four-year term of office are Tyler Diep and Chi Charlie Nguyen, 

and that said persons are accordingly declared to be elected to the office of the 

Directors of the Midway City Sanitary District. 

Section 2: That said persons shall take their oaths of office and receive 

their Certificates of Election according to law, and assume their office effective 

AT 12:00 P.M. on December 6, 2024; or as soon thereafter as their oath is given 

and filed with the District Secretary. 

Section 3: That this resolution shall be effective as of December 6, 2024. 

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 6th day of December, 2024. 

ATTEST: Mark Nguyen, President 

Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 

[I]



C ER TIFIC A TION 

I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of the MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT of 
Orange County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 
2024-26 was duly adopted at a meeting of the Governing Board of said District held 
on the 6th day of December, 2024 by the following vote of the members of the 
Board: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

and I further certify that Mark Nguyen, as President, and Andrew Nguyen, as 
Secretary, signed and approved said Resolution No. 2022-26 on the 6th day of 
December, 2024. 

Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 

(District Seal) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of the Midway City Sanitary District of 
Orange County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and 
correct copy of Resolution No. 2024-26 passed and adopted by the Board of 
Directors of said District at a meeting thereof held on the 6th day of December, 
2024. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have here unto set my hand and affixed my 
official Seal of said District this 6th day of December, 2024. 

Andrew Nguyen, Secretary 

[2]



CERTIFIED STATEMENT OF THE VOTES CAST 

at the 

PRESIDENTIAL GENERAL ELECTION 

NOVEMBER 5, 2024 

in the 

County of Orange, State of California 

FILED , 2024 
------

SHIRLEY N. WEBER, SECRETARY OF STATE 

BY ___________ DEPUTY 

State of California) 
) ss 

County of Orange) 

I, Bob Page, Registrar of Voters of Orange County, do hereby certify that, in pursuance 
of the provisions of Elections Code section 15300, et seq., I did canvass the results of the 
votes cast in the Presidential General Election held in Orange County on November 5, 2024, 
for measures and contests that were submitted to the vote of the voters, and that the 
Statement of Votes Cast, to which this certificate is attached is full, true, and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and Official Seal 

THIS 
I 
2024 

�t- !C F· 
REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

I 



CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRAR OF VOTERS TO RESULT OF THE 

CANVASS OF THE PRESIDENTIAL GENERAL ELECTION RETURNS 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA) 

)ss. 
COUNTY OF ORANGE ) 

I, Bob Page, Registrar of Voters of Orange County, do hereby certify the following to be a 

full, true and correct Statement of the Vote of the Presidential General Election held on 

November 5, 2024. 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

DIRECTOR 

TYLER DIEP 
CHI CHARLIE NGUYEN 
AMY PHAN WEST 
ANH"ANDY"NGUYEN 
NAMQUAN NGUYEN 
KHAI DAO 

VOTE CENTER BALLOTS CAST: 
VOTE-BY-MAIL BALLOTS CAST: 
TOTAL BALLOTS CAST: 

19,646 
14,605 
8,646 
4,851 
2,702 
2,089 

8,926 
31,984 
40,910 

I hereby certify that the number of votes cast for each candidate is as set forth above and 

appears in the Certified Statement of the Vote. 

WITNESS my hand and Official Seal this 3rd day of December, 2024. 

BOB PAGE 
Registrar of Voters 
Orange County 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1174 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Vote Center Totals 

z z 
w w z 
>- >-

:::, >- I-
\!) \!) :::, 
z z \!) w 

>- w 
z 

ti 0.. :::; z z 
0 "' e w 0 0 «: <( . ., z <( 
� u .., o <( 

;'( 
<( :::, I 

::, 0 I 0 0.. 

ti 0 «: u 

'6, _Q E w <( I � >-

-;;; 
...J 

I z :i: <( � 
District 

"' ::, 
�«: a, I- � <( u z <( 

Orange County 58.848 8.926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2,137 

Orange County 58.848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2.137 

45th CongresslOn.al District 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 

47th Congressional District 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

36th Senate District 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 

70th Assembly District 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 

72nd Assembly District 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1st Superviso,ial District 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2.137 

\'/estminster 54,211 8,207 15.1 3,348 358 968 2,154 492 1,974 

Westminster Council District l 14,411 2.470 17.1 1,040 108 292 622 123 752 

V/estminster Council District 2 12,017 1,895 15.8 783 87 223 490 121 506 

Westminster Council District 3 14,054 2.093 14.9 847 79 246 568 130 392 

Westminster Council District 4 13,729 1,749 12.7 678 84 207 474 118 324 

State Board of Equalization 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2,137 

(4th District) 

4th District Court of Appeal 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2,137 

Unin((xporated Alea 4,637 719 15.5 331 30 99 202 44 163 

County Board of Education 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Trustee Area 2 

County Board of Education 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 

Trustee Area 4 

Coast Community College 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 

District 

Coast Community College 27.426 4,514 16.5 1,885 201 530 1,153 253 1,293 

District Trustee Area 1 

Coast Community College 23,576 3,245 13.8 1,304 146 393 892 209 590 

District Trustee Area 2 

Coast Community Col!ege 7,846 1,167 14.9 490 41 144 311 74 254 

District Trustee Area 3 

Ocean Vie,•, School District 4,816 703 14.6 299 28 81 190 46 142 

Westminster School Olstrkt 38.644 6,200 16.0 2,595 261 756 1,621 349 1,611 

V/estminster School District 10,918 1,893 17.3 790 88 218 475 94 600 

Trustee Area 1 

Westminster School o:strkt 8,275 1,300 15.7 535 58 144 338 76 352 

Trustee Area 2 

\
1/estminster School Distrkt 4,006 577 14.4 217 28 81 154 45 95 

Trustee Area 3 

Westminster School District 9,460 1.474 15.6 645 52 192 399 87 301 

Trustee Area 4 

Westminster School Oistrkt 5,985 956 16.0 408 35 121 255 47 263 

Trustee Area 5 

Huntington Beach Union High 43,460 6,903 15.9 2,894 289 837 1,811 395 1,753 

School District 

Huntington Beach Union High 27,233 4,295 15.8 1,807 174 522 1,140 252 1,072 

School District Trustee Area 1 

Huntington Beach un:on High 14,284 2,321 162 966 104 284 602 131 601 

School District Trustee Area 2 

Huntington Beach Union High 1,943 287 14.8 121 11 31 69 12 80 

School District Trustee Area 3 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

District 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

District Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified Schoo 15,388 2,023 13.1 785 99 230 545 141 384 

Oistrkt 

Garden Grove Unified School 2,685 347 12.9 124 17 44 92 21 80 

District Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified School 12,703 1,676 132 661 82 186 453 120 304 

Olstrkt Trustee Area 5 

Municipal Water District of 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2,137 

Orange County 

Municipal Water District of 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2.137 

Orange County DiVision 3 

Municipal Water Distrkt of 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Orange County Division 4 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1175 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Vote Center Totals 

z z 
w w z >- >- w 

::::, ::::, >- I-
\!) \!) ::::, VI 

z z \!) w 

S-- w 
z � 

C -

� 
0.. Cl ::::; z z 0 V, 

0 ·.:;; "' w 

z 
er: � � 

� 
u - ci � 

� 
� ::::, I 

¥) Cl I a 0.. 
V, 0 u 
'&, E. E

w <i: I � >-
..J 

:i: � 
District 

., 'iii :::, >- I z � 
er: a, I- I- ,.,: � u z � 

Orange County Water Distiict 58,848 8,926 1S2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2.137 
Orange County Water Oist1kt 8,106 1,027 12.7 394 48 128 272 64 206 
o;vision 1 

Orange County Water Distiict S0,742 7,899 15.6 3,285 340 939 2.084 472 1,931 
o:vislon 4 

Midway City Sanitary District 58,848 8,926 152 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2.137 
Historical 2010 • 47th 33,654 S,437 162 2.257 239 652 1.417 302 1,438 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 - 48th 25,194 3,489 13.8 1,422 149 41S 939 234 699 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 - 34th Senate 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 
District 

388 1,067 2,356 S36 2.137 

Hist01ical 2010 - 72nd 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2,137 
Assembly District 

Historical 2010 - State Board of 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2,137 
Equalization (4th District) 

Historical 2010 - 1st 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2.137 
Supeivisoria1 District 

Historical 2010 - County Board 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2.137 
of Education Trustee Area 2 

Prnposition 2 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2.137 
Prnposition 3 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2,137 
P,oposition 4 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2.137 
Proposition 5 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2,137 
Proposition 6 SS,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2,137 
Proposition 32 58,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2.137 
Proposition 33 $8,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2,137 
Proposition 34 $8,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2,137 
Proposition 35 $8,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2,137 
Proposition 36 58,848 8,926 1S.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 S36 2,137 
United States Senator 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.3S6 S36 2,137 
Partial/Une)(pired Term 

United States Senator 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 S36 2,137 
President 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 
Vote Center Totals $8,848 8,926 lS.2 3,679 388 1,067 2,356 536 2.137 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1176 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Vote by Mail 

Totals 

z z w w z 
>- >- w 
:::> :::> >- I-
\!) \!) :::> 
z z \!) w 

j,.. w z 
.., 

� 
Q. ::; z z 

0 V, 0 
. ., 

"' w 
� z er: <( 

u .., 0 
::r: 

<( :::> 
::, 0 :r: a Q. 

-� 0 er: u 
_Q C w cl' :r: � 
-;;; :5 -' 

:r: z :r: <( 
District 

a, 
� er: a, I- ,,, <( u z <( 

Orange County 58,848 31,984 S4.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

Orange County 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

45th Congressional District 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

47th Congressional Distri<t 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

36th Senate District 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

70th Assemb:Y District 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

72nd Assemb:Y District 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1st Supervisorial District 58,848 31,984 S4.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

Westminster S4,211 29,653 S4.7 14686 1596 3491 11268 2019 6095 

Westminster Council o:strict 1 14,411 8,260 573 3990 370 8S4 2879 369 2023 

Westminster Council District 2 12,017 6,105 50.8 3085 347 703 2297 494 1205 

Westminster Council District 3 14,054 7,711 S4.9 3761 449 1032 3121 S43 1481 

\'/estminster Council District 4 13,729 7,577 55.2 3850 430 902 2971 613 1386 

State Board of Equalization 58,848 31,984 S4.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
(41h District) 
4th DiStrict Court of Appeal 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

UnincOfporated Area 4,637 2,331 50.3 1281 105 293 981 147 414 

County Board of Education 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Trustee Area 2 

County Board of Education 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Trustee Area 4 

Coast Community Co!lege 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Distrkt 

Coast Community College 27,426 14,931 54.4 7396 741 1621 S407 894 3337 
District Trustee Area 1 

Coast Community College 23,576 12,689 53.8 6354 744 1626 5081 1000 2314 
District Truste-e Area 2 

Coast Community College 7,846 4,364 55.6 2217 216 S37 1761 272 858 
OistIK.t Trustee Area 3 

ocean View School District 4,8t6 2,864 59.5 1402 118 334 1127 150 593 

Westminster School District 38,644 20,705 53.6 10296 1100 2421 7803 1345 4401 

Westminster School District 10,918 6,131 56.2 2968 289 650 2121 278 1497 
Trustee Area 1 

Westminster School District 8,275 4,138 50.0 2095 221 494 1525 347 850 
Trustee Area 2 

Westminster School District 4,006 2,072 51.7 964 140 297 795 166 405 
Trustee Area 3 

Westminster School Distrkt 9,460 4,803 50.8 2467 280 623 2006 397 907 
Trustee Area 4 

Westminster School District 5,985 3,561 59.5 1802 170 357 1356 157 742 
Trustee Area 5 

Huntington Beach Union High 43,460 23,569 542 11698 1218 2755 8930 1495 4994 
School District 
Huntington Beach Union High 27,233 14,899 54.7 7403 778 1799 5725 889 3188 
School District Trustee Area 1 

Huntington Beach Union High 14,284 7,364 51.6 3666 390 822 2743 565 1484 
School District Trustee Area 2 

Huntington Beach Union High 1,943 1,306 67.2 629 50 134 462 41 322 
School District Trustee Area 3 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
District 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
District Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified School lS,388 8.415 54.7 4269 483 1029 3319 671 1S15 
Distrkt 

Garden Grove Unified School 2,685 1.494 55.6 751 104 187 569 113 277 
District Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified School 12,703 6,921 54.5 3518 379 842 2750 558 1238 
District Trustee Area 5 

Mun:cipal Water o;strkt of 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Orange County 

Mun:cipal Water Oistrkt of 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Orange County Division 3 

Municipal Water District of 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 
Orange County DiviSion 4 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1177 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Vote by Mail 

Totals 

z z 
UJ UJ z >- >- UJ 
:::> :::> >-

I-L'J L'J :::> V) 
z z L'J UJ 

>- UJ z s: 
C: ... 

l Cl. :J z z 0 VI 
0 

. ., "' UJ 
z 

er: ct ct 
(:' 

u 
5 ci ct 

� 
ct :::> I 

l!l 0 I Ci Cl. t; 0 er: u 
'6, .Q C: UJ <i: I � >-
QJ "iij 5 

...J 
I z :i: ct � District er: tO I- r:: So! ct u z ct 

Orange County Water District 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Orange County Water District 8,106 4A13 54.4 2208 
Div;sion 1 

264 556 1742 326 833 

Orange County Water Oistrkt 50,742 27,571 54.3 13759 
o;v;sion 4 

1437 3228 10507 1840 5676 

Midway Gty Sanitary District 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Historical 2010 • 47th 33,654 18,156 53.9 8913 958 2091 6727 1160 3940 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 • 48th 25,194 13,828 54.9 7054 743 1693 5522 1006 2569 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 - 34th Senate 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 
District 

1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 

Historical 2010 - 72nd 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Assembly o;strict 

Historical 2010 - State Board of 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Equalization (4th District) 

Historical 2010 - 1st 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Supervisorial District 

Historical 2010 - County Board 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
of Education Trustee Area 2 

Proposition 2 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 3 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Propositjon 4 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition S 58.848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 6 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Ptoposition 32 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 33 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 34 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 35 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Proposition 36 58.84B 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
United States Senator 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Partial/Une)(pired Term 

United States Senator 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
President 58,848 31,984 54.4 15967 1701 3784 12249 2166 6509 
Vote by Mail Totals 58.848 31,984 54.4 15,967 1,701 3,784 12,249 2,166 6,509 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1178 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Grand Totals 

z z 
w w z 
>- >- w 
::::> ::::> >- I--
\!} \!} ::::> 
z z \!} w 

>- w z 

t;:; a.. ::; z z 0 e 0 
·;;; "' w 0 

z 
et: cl'. cl'. 

V - 0 cl'. cl'. ::::> I 
:::, 0 � I a a.. 

t;:; 0 et: V 
'o, .2 E w <i: I � >-

ro 
_, 

I z :i: cl'. � 
District 

"' :::, 
� et: co I-- ><'. cl'. V z cl'. 

Orange County S8.8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Orange County 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
45th Congressional District 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

47th Congressional District 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
36th Senate District 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

70th Assembly District 58,8<18 40,910 69.S 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

72nd Assembly District 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1st Supervisorial District 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Westminster 54,211 37,860 69.8 18034 1954 4459 13422 2511 8069 

Westminster Council District 1 14.411 10,730 74.5 5030 478 1146 3501 492 2775 
Westminster Council District 2 12,017 8,000 66.6 3868 434 926 2787 615 1711 

Westminster Council District 3 14,054 9,804 69.8 4608 528 1278 3689 673 1873 
Westminster Council District 4 13,729 9,326 67.9 4528 514 1109 3445 731 1710 

State Board of Equalization 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
(4th District) 
4th District Court of Appeal 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

UnincOf'porated Area 4,637 3,050 65.8 1612 135 392 1183 191 577 

County Board of Education 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Trustee Area 2 

County Board of Education 58,8<18 40,910 69.S 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Trustee Area 4 

Coast Community Col!ege 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Oistrkt 

Coast Community Col!ege 27.426 19,445 70.9 9281 942 2151 6560 1147 4630 
Oistrkt Trustee Area 1 

Coast Community College 23,576 15,934 67.6 7658 890 2019 5973 1209 2904 

o:strkt Trustee Area 2 

Coast Community College 7,8<16 5,531 70.5 2707 257 681 2072 346 1112 
District Trustee Area 3 

Ocean View School District 4,816 3,567 74.1 1701 146 415 1317 196 735 

Westminster School District 38,644 26,905 69.6 12891 1361 3177 9424 1694 6012 

Westminster School District 10,918 8,024 73.5 3758 377 868 2596 372 2097 
Trustee Area 1 

Westminster School District 8,275 5,438 65.7 2630 279 638 1863 423 1202 
Trustee Area 2 

Westminster School District 4,006 2,649 66.1 1181 168 378 949 211 500 
Trustee Area 3 

Westminster School District 9,460 6,277 66.4 3112 332 815 2405 484 1208 
Trustee Area 4 

Westminster School District 5,985 4,517 75.5 2210 205 478 1611 204 1005 
Trustee Area 5 

Huntington Beach un;on High 43,460 30,472 70.1 14592 1507 3592 10741 1890 6747 
School District 
Huntington Beach un:oo High 27,233 19,194 70.5 9210 952 2321 6865 1141 4260 
School District Trustee Area 1 

Huntington Beach Un:on High 14,28<1 9,685 67.8 4632 494 1106 3345 696 2085 
School District Trustee Area 2 

Huntington Beach Union High 1,943 1,593 82.0 750 61 165 531 53 402 
School District Trustee Area 3 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
District 

Los Alamitos Unified School 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
D6trict Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified Schoof 15,388 10,438 67.8 5054 582 1259 3864 812 1899 
District 

Garden Gr0'1e Unified School 2,685 1,8<11 68.6 875 121 231 661 134 357 
District Trustee Area 4 

Garden Grove Unified School 12,703 8,597 67.7 4179 461 1028 3203 678 1542 
District Trustee Area S 

Mun:cipal \'later District of 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Orange County 

Municipal Water District of 58,8<18 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Orange County Division 3 

Municipal Water District of 0 0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 
Orange County Division 4 



12/03/2024 11 :41 AM District Results Report - November 05, 2024 Page 1179 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT Director 

Grand Totals 

z z 
UJ UJ z >- >- UJ 
::::, ::::, >- I-
\.!) I.!) ::::, V\ 
z z I.!) UJ 

>- UJ z ;: 
C 

t, � a.. ::; z z 0 
"' UJ 0 

Cl 
ct'. <t <t . ., z 

� 
u 

:5 5 <t 

::r: 
<t ::::, I 

:§ 
Cl I a a.. 

V\ 0 ct'. u �'6, E UJ <i: I >-_, 
z :i: <t � 

District 
a, ro ::, >- I 
Cl:'. co I- I- ><'. <t u z <t 

Orange County \'later District 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Orange County \'later District 8,106 5.440 67.1 2602 312 684 2014 390 1039 
o;vision 1 

Orange County Water District 50,742 35,470 69.9 17044 1777 4167 12591 2312 7607 
o;vision 4 

Midway City Sanitary District 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Historical 2010 - 47th 33,654 23,593 70.1 11170 1197 2743 8144 1462 5378 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 - 48th 25,194 17,317 68.7 8476 892 2108 6461 1240 3268 
Congressional District 

Historical 2010 - 34th Senate 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
o;strict 

Historical 2010 - 72nd 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Assembly o;strict 

Historical 2010 - State Board of 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Equalization (4th District) 

Historical 2010 - 1st 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Supervisorial Distrkt 

Historical 2010 - County Board 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
of Education Trustee Area 2 

Proposition 2 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 3 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 4 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 5 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 6 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 32 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Prnposition 33 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 34 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 35 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Proposition 36 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

United States Senator 58.848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 
Partial/Unexpired Term 

United States Senator 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

P,esident 58,848 40,910 69.5 19646 2089 4851 14605 2702 8646 

Vote Center Totals 58,848 8,926 15.2 3,679 388 1,067 2.356 536 2.137 

Vote by Mail Totals 58.848 31,984 54.4 15,967 1,701 3,784 12,249 2,166 6,509 

Grand Totals 58,848 40,910 69.5 19,646 2.089 4,851 14,605 2.702 8,646 



AGENDA ITEM 4B 

Date: 

To: 

From: 

December 6, 2024 

Board of Directors 

Robert Housley, General Manager 

Prepared by: Cynthia Olsder, Executive/Board Secretary 

Subject: Consider the Annual Board Reorganization, Including Election of 
Officers, Board Committee Appointments, and Appointments to Outside 
Boards and Committees 

BACKGROUND 

Each year in December, the Board considers the election of new officers and the 
appointment of its members to Board committees and to outside boards and committees. 

DISCUSSION 

Sections 4, 6, and 7 of the adopted Board Policies and Procedures provide as follows: 

Section 4: Election of Officers and Powers and Duties of Officers: 

At the first regular meeting in December of each year, a President, President Pro 
Tern, a Secretary, a Treasurer and a Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tern to serve in the absence 
of the secretary or treasurer shall be elected by a majority vote as the first order of 
business by the Board from its members, who shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and 
until successors are elected. It is the policy of the Board that officer positions be rotated 
so that the same individual does not serve in the same officer position either for more 
than two (2) consecutive years or for more than two (2) years during any single elective 
term as Director. 

The President, when present, will preside at all meetings of the Board. The 
President Pro Tern will preside in the absence of the President. In the event neither the 
President nor the President Pro Tern is in attendance, but a quorum is present, the 
Secretary shall conduct the affairs of the meeting, and shall have the powers attendant to 
the President for the conduct of the meeting. 

A. President

The President is charged with the following duties: 

(I) To open the meeting at the scheduled time, by taking the chair and calling
members to order; (2) to announce the business presently pending before the Board in the 
order in which it is to be acted upon; (3) to state and to put to vote all questions which are 
regularly moved; ( 4) to announce the result of the vote; (5) to represent the Board at 

Page I of3 



social functions or designate a Board member to do so; (6) to approve the Board agenda 
in conjunction with the Manager and General Counsel; and (7) to execute, along with the 
Secretary, all contracts approved by the Board; (8) to review, along with the secretary, 
the draft minutes, and (9) review and recommend action by the Board on requests by the 
Treasurer for compensation for expenses and attendance at meetings other than regularly 
scheduled meetings of the Board or special meetings called by the Board. 

The underlying duty of the President is to subserve the will of the Board and to 
facilitate the expression of the Board's deliberations. 

The President will notify the Secretary who will keep a record of the times when 
the President will not be available to discharge the duties of President as are prescribed 
by law and by the Board. 

B. President Pro Tern

The President Pro Tern, in the absence of the President, is authorized to perform 
such duties as are prescribed for the President by law or by the Board. 

C. Secretary

The Secretary is to review and approve the minutes and execute, along with the 
President, all contracts approved by the Board. 

D. Treasurer

The Treasurer is to review and recommend action by the Board on all bills, 
quarterly financial reports, and requests by Board members for compensation for 
expenses and attendance at meetings, other than regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board or special meetings called by the Board. 

E. Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tem

The Secretaryrrreasurer Pro Tern, in the absence of the Secretary or Treasurer, is 
authorized to perform such duties as are prescribed for the Secretary or Treasurer by law 
or by the Board. 

Section 6: Board Committees. 

The Board may establish Committees and appoint members thereto by Board resolution 
or minute order. Each Committee may select such methods for study of the matters under 
its jurisdiction as it determines appropriate, subject to any limitations imposed on the 
Committee by the Board. 

The Chairperson of any Committee shall report on the activity of the Committee to the 
Board at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. 

Page 2 of3 



Section 7: Appointment to Outside Boards and Committees. 

The following officers shall serve as Board representatives on the following Committees: 

1. Orange County Sanitation District - President or the President's designee.

2. California Special District Association - President, Pro Tern and Secretary, who
shall report back to the Board on items discussed and how votes were cast.

As to all other Committees, the Board may, from time to time, appoint Board members or 
staff members, as required, to outside Boards and Committees, who shall serve at the 
pleasure of the Board and until successors are appointed. All existing appointments shall 
remain in effect unless changed by order of the Board. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 
None 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
That the Board elect new officers and make new appointments to Board committees and 
to select outside boards and committees. 

ATTACHMENT 
1. 2025 Annual Reorganization Chart
2. Board Reorganization Chart Histmy
3. Policies and Procedures of the Board of Directors

Page 3 of3 



2025 ANNUAL REORGANIZATION - VOTES CAST 

OFFICE DIRECTOR NOMINATION BY AYES NOES ABSTAIN 

PRESIDENT 

PRESIDENT PRO-TEM 

SECRETARY 

TREASURER 

SEC/TREAS PRO-TEM 

OCSD REP (APPOINTED) 

OCSD ALT REP (APPOINTED) 

ISDOC REP FULL BOARD FULL BOARD - - -

BUDGET/AUDIT COMMITTEE FULL BOARD FULL BOARD - - -

CALENDAR COMMITTEE (2) 

ALT CALENDAR COMMITTEE 

NEGOTIATING LABOR/MOU FULL BOARD FULL BOARD - - -

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

COMMITTEE (2) 

ALT FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

COMMITTEE 

LEGISLATIVE & PUBLIC 

AFFAIRS OUTREACH 

COMMITTEE (2) 

ALT LEGISLATIVE & PUBLIC 

AFFAIRS OUTREACH 

COMMITTEE 

SET MEETING DATE/TIME 

1ST & 3RD TUESDAY 

AT5:30PM 

S:\1. Board Agenda Packets\2024 Agenda Packets\12-06-2024 Board Pkt - Special Reorg Meeting\original\4bl. 2025 Board Reorg 

Chart2025 (b) 



BOARD REORGANIZATION CHART HISTORY 

OFFICE 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 

PRESIDENT MN TD AN AN CN CN 

PRESIDENT PRO-TEM CN MN TD CN AN SC 

SECRETARY AN AN SC SC SC AN 

TREASURER SC CN CN TD MR AK 

SECffREAS PRO-TEM TD SC MN MN AN MR 

OCSD REP. AN AN AN AN AN AN 

OCSD ALT REP. TD MN MN MN MR AK 

ISDOC REP. FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD 

BUDGET/AUDIT COMM. FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD 

CALENDAR COMM. (2) TD/SC SC/MN SC/MN AN/CN AN/MR CN/MR 

ALT. CALENDAR COMM. 
MN AN CN SC CN AK 

NEGOTIATING 
FULL BOARD 

LABOR/MOU 
FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD FULL BOARD 

FRANCHISE 
TD/CN SC/MN 

AGREEMENT COMM. (2) 
SC/MN SC/CN MR/CN CN/MR 

ALT. FRANCHISE 
SC CN CN MN AN SC 

AGREEMENT COMM. 

OUTREACH COMM. (2) TD/CN AN/CN TD/CN - - -

ALT. OUTREACH COMM. SC TD - - - -

SET MEETING 
IST&3RD IST& 3RD 1ST & 3RD IST&3RD IST& 3RD IST& 3RD 

TUESDAY TUESDAY TUESDAY TUESDAY TUESDAY TUESDAY 
DATE/fIME 

AT 5:30 PM AT 5:30 PM AT 5:30 PM AT 5:30 PM AT 5:30 PM AT 5:00 PM 

S:\4. Board of Directors\!. Board Reorganizations (Annual)\2. Board Reorg history 11/26/2024 2:13 PM 



1814946.2 

EXHIBIT "A" 

AMENDED 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

OF 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF 

THE MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

JANUARY 16, 2024 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Section 1: Scope ......................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2: Meetings ..................................................................................................... 1 

A. Regular Meetings ............................................................................. 1 

B. Special Meetings ............................................................................. 2 

C. Emergency Meetings ....................................................................... 2 

D. Adjourned Meetings ......................................................................... 2 

E. Closed Session ................................................................................ 2 

F. Teleconference Meetings ......... ............... ... ........................... 3 

G. Attendance at Meetings ... ... .............................. ..................... 3 

Section 3: Quorum for Conduct of Business ............................................................... 3 

Section 4: Election of Officers and Powers and Duties of Officers .............................. 3 

A. President ......................................................................................... 3 

B. President Pro Tern .......................................................................... .4 

C. Secretary ......................................................................................... 4 

D. Treasurer ................................. .......................................... .4 

E. Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tern ......................................................... .4 

Section 5: Decorum in Debate .................................................................................... 5 

Section 6: Board Committees ...................................................................................... 5 

Section 7: Appointment to Outside Boards and Committees ....................................... 5 

Section 8: Appointment of Recording Secretary Who Shall Also Serve 
as Clerk of the Board .................................................................................. 6 

Section 9: Items to be Considered by the Board ......................................................... 7 

1814946.2 



Section 1 O: Staff Reports .............................................................................................. 7 

Section 11: Agenda for Regular Meetings ..................................................................... 8 

A. Format ............................................................................................. 8 

B. Consent Calendar ... ...... ................................................ ....... 9 

C. Action on Items Not Appearing on Agenda ...................................... 9 

Section 12: Distribution of Agendas ............................................................................ 10 

Section 13: Participation by the Public ........................................................................ 10 

A. Persons Addressing the Board ...................................................... 10 

B. Decorum and Rules of Conduct.. ....... ...... . ............................. 11 

C. Enforcement and Removal of Disruptive Individuals .................. 11 

Section 14: Conduct of Meetings ................................................................................ 12 

A. Legal Officer .................................................................................. 12 

B. Obtaining the Floor and Making Motions ....................................... 12 

C. Voting ............................................................................................ 12 

D. Failure to Vote/Abstentions ............................................................ 13 

E. Closing or Limiting Debate ............................................................. 13 

F. Conflicts of lnterest.. ...................................................................... 13 

Section 15: Procedure for Consideration of Demands for Corrective Action ............... 13 

A. Requirement of Written Demand ................................................... 13 

B. Consideration of Corrective Action ................................................ 14 

C. Implementing Corrective Action ..................................................... 14 

D. Alternative Demand Procedure ...................................................... 14 

Section 16: Reading Papers ........................................................................................ 15 

1814946.2 



Section 17: Board Member Contact with Legal Counsel ............................................. 15 

Section 18: Adoption of Reports .................................................................................. 15 

Section 19: Amendments ............................................................................................ 15 

Section 20: Rules are Adopted for Procedural Purposes ............................................ 15 

1814946.2 



POLICIES AND PROCEDURES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT 

January 16, 2024 

Section 1: Scope. 

These procedures apply to the conduct of the business by the Board of Directors of 
the Midway City Sanitary District. It is the intent of the Board that all of these procedures 
be implemented in compliance with the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act, Government 
Code Sections 54950 through 54963, inclusive, as amended from time to time (hereinafter 
the "Brown Act"). 

Section 2: Meetings. 

A. Regular Meetings

Regular meetings of the Board will be held on the first Tuesday and the third 
Tuesday of each month at 5:30 P.M., at the District offices located at 14451 Cedarwood 
Avenue, Westminster, CA 92683. The standing date, lime, and/or location of Regular 
meetings may be changed by separate resolution of the Board without the necessity of 
amending these Procedures. On a case-by-case basis, the date, lime, and/or location of a 
future regular meeting may be changed by the Board by resolution or minute order. Notice 
of the regular meeting shall be delivered to the Board of Directors personally or by any 
other means at least 72 hours prior to the time for the meeting. 

On a case-by-case basis, a regular meeting may be cancelled by the General 
Manager, with the consent of the Board President, due to lack of business or other good 
cause. Notice of a meeting cancellation shall be provided to the Board of Directors and the 
public in the same manner as notice of a regular meeting. Two (2) or more consecutive 
regular meetings may not be cancelled without action by a majority of the Board of 
Directors at a duly called regular or special meeting. 

At least 72 hours before a regular meeting, an agenda for the meeting shall be 
posted in a location freely accessible to the public and on the District's website. Any 
person may request that a copy of the agenda, or a copy of all documents constituting the 
agenda packet, for any meeting of the Board of Directors be mailed to the requesting 
person. The requested documents are to be mailed at the time the agenda is posted or, if 
unavailable upon posting of the agenda, upon distribution to all or a majority of the Board 
Members. Any request for mailed copies of agendas or agenda packets shall be valid for 
the calendar year in which the request is filed and must be renewed following January 1 of 
each year. The Board of Directors may separately establish a fee for mailing the agenda or 
agenda packet, which fee shall not exceed the cost of providing the service. If agendas or 
documents constituting the agenda packet are requested in electronic format, the agendas 

1 
1814946.2 



and documents shall, if available in such format, be provided pursuant to the time frames 
identified above.

B. Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by the President or three (3) members of the Board 
from time to time, as necessary. Notice of the special meeting shall be provided to the 
Board of Directors, and to each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or 
television station requesting notice, personally or by any other means at least 24 hours 
prior to the time for the meeting. Notice of a special meeting may be dispensed with as to 
any Board member who at or prior to the time the meeting convenes files with the 
Recording Secretary a written waiver of notice or who is actually present at the meeting al 
the time it convenes. No other business except that which is contained in the notice shall 
be conducted. A special meeting shall not be called regarding the salaries, salary 
schedules, or compensation paid in the form of fringe benefits, of a local agency executive, 
as defined in Government Code Section 3511.1 (d). 

C. Emergency Meetings

The Board may hold an emergency meeting without complying with notice and 
posting requirements in those emergency situations set forth in Government Code Section 
54956.5. The presiding officer, or designee, shall telephone each local newspaper of 
general circulation and radio and television station that has requested notice of special 
meetings at least one hour prior to the emergency meeting and notify them of the 
emergency meeting. 

D. Adjourned Meetings

Any meeting may be adjourned to a time and place specified in accordance with 
Government Code Section 54955. Any adjourned meeting is part of a regular meeting or a 
special meeting, as appropriate. 

E. Closed Session

The Board may hold closed sessions during a regular or special meeting, or at any 
time otherwise authorized by law, to consider or hear any matter which it is authorized by 
State law to hear or consider in closed session. During closed session, the Board may 
exclude any person or persons which it is authorized by State law to exclude from a closed 
session. No minutes of the proceedings of the Board during a closed session are reqllired. 
In order to preserve the confidentiality of closed session discussions, no audio or video 
recordings of closed session meetings shall be made in the absence of a valid court order 
issued pursuant to Government Code Section 54960. Statements made and documents 
distributed or discussed in closed session are privileged from disclosure. No disclosure of 
any statement made in closed session or document protected from disclosure will be made 
by any Board member or by District staff, except as disclosure is authorized or required by 
applicable law. 

2 
1814946,2 



F. Teleconference Meetings

The Board of Directors may conduct teleconferenced meetings pursuant to the 
Brown Act in accordance with Government Code Section 54953 and other applicable 
policies of the Board of Directors. 

G. Attendance at Meetings

Members of the Board of Directors shall comply with the District's Policy 
Regarding Board of Director Absences and Attendance at Meetings. 

Section 3: Quorum for Conduct of Business. 

Three (3) members will be a quorum sufficient to conduct business. A majority vote 
of the members present is required for any action in the absence of statutory provision to 
the contrary. 

Section 4: Election of Officers and Powers and Duties of Officers. 

At the first regular meeting in December of each year, or at a special meeting called 
for said purpose, a President, President Pro Tem, a Secretary, a Treasurer and a 
Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tern to serve in the absence of the Secretary or Treasurer shall be 
elected by a majority vote by the Board from its members, who shall serve at the pleasure 
of the Board and until successors are elected. It is the policy of the Board that officer 
positions be rotated so that the same individual does not serve in the same officer position 
either for more than two (2) consecutive years or for more than two (2) years during any 
single elective term as Director. 

The President, when present, will preside at all meetings of the Board. The 
President Pro Tern will preside in the absence of the President. In the event neither the 
President nor the President Pro Tem is in attendance, but a quorum is present, the 
Secretary shall conduct the affairs of the meeting, and shall have the powers attendant to 
the President for the conduct of the meeting. 

A. President

The President is charged with the following duties: 

(1) To open the meeting at the scheduled time, by taking the chair and calling
members to order; (2) to announce the business presently pending before the Board in the 
order in which it is to be acted upon; (3) to state and to put to vote all questions which are 
regularly moved; (4) to announce the result of the vote; (5) to represent the Board at social 
functions or designate a Board member to do so; (6) to approve the Board agenda in 
conjunction with the Manager and General Counsel; (7) to execute, along with the 
Secretary, all Resolutions adopted by the Board; (8) to execute, along with the Secretary, 
all contracts approved by the Board (except for contracts entered into and/or executed by 

3 
1814916.2 



the General Manager or his or her designee pursuant to express authorization of the 
Board); (9) to review and recommend action by the Board on recommendations by the 
Treasurer pertaining to requests by Board members for compensation and/or 
reimbursement for expenses pertaining to attendance at meetings, events, or activities 
other than those meetings, events, or activities for which compensation or reimbursement 
of expenses has already been pre-approved by the Board; and (10) to perform such other 
acts as are expressly authorized by the Board. 

The underlying duty of the President is to subserve the will of the Board and to 
facilitate the expression of the Board's deliberations. 

The President will notify the Secretary who will keep a record of the times when the 
President will not be available to discharge the duties of President as are prescribed by law 
and by the Board. 

B. President Pro Tern

The President Pro Tern, in the absence of the President, is authorized to perform 
such duties as are prescribed for the President by law or by the Board. 

C. Secretary

The Secretary is to execute, along with the President, all Resolutions and all 
contracts approved by the Board (except for contracts entered into and/or executed by the 
General Manager or his or her designee pursuant to express authorization of the Board). 

D. Treasurer

The Treasurer is to review and verify that payment of all expenditures of the District 
made without prior Board approval are within the annual budget approved by the Board, 
and to review and recommend action by the Board on all bills, quarterly financial reports, 
and requests by Board members for compensation and/or reimbursement for expenses 
pertaining to attendance at meetings, events, o� activities other than those meetings, 
events, or activities for which compensation or reimbursement of expenses has already 
been pre-approved by the Board. 

E. Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tem

The Secretary/Treasurer Pro Tern, in the absence of the Secretary or Treasurer, is 
authorized to perform such duties as are prescribed for the Secretary or Treasurer by law 
or by the Board. 

4 
1814946.2 



Section 5: Decorum in Debate. 

All members shall address their remarks to the President and confine them to the 
business then pending and subject to discussion before the Board, avoiding personalities 
and reflections upon anyone's motives. 

The President is charged with the following duties: (1) to restrain the members within 
the rules of order; (2) to enforce on all occasions the observance of order and decorum; (3) 
to inform the members when necessary, on a point of order or practice. 

Section 6: Board Committees. 

The Board may establish Committees and appoint members thereto by Board 
resolution or minute order. Each Committee may select such methods for study of the 
matters under its jurisdiction as it determines appropriate, subject to any limitations 
imposed on the Committee by the Board. 

Committees may be either (1) standing Committees, which have a continuing subject 
matter jurisdiction or a meeting schedule fixed by formal action of the Board or other law, or 
(2) ad hoc Committees, which are formed for a limited purpose and duration and do not
have a fixed meeting schedule. Standing Committees are subject to the Brown Act, and all
meetings of standing Committees shall be noticed and conducted in compliance with the
Brown Act. No more than two (2) Board members may participate on a Committee at the
same time. The Board may appoint a third Board member to serve as an alternate for a
standing Committee, who may attend Committee meetings in the absence of one of the
regular members. No alternates will be appointed to ad hoc Committees.

One or more members of any Committee shall report on the activity of the 
Committee to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors. All minutes of 
Committee meetings, if prepared, shall be provided to the Board of Directors. 

Section 7: Appointment to Outside Boards and Committees. 

The following officers shall serve as Board representatives on the following Boards 
and Committees: 

1. Orange County Sanitation District - President or the President's designee.

2. California Special District Association - President, Pro Tern and Secretary,
who shall report back to the Board on items discussed and how votes were
cast.

As to all other Boards and Committees, the Board may, from time to time, appoint 
Board members or staff members, as required, to outside Boards and Committees, who 
shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and until successors are appointed. All existing 
appointments shall remain in effect unless changed by order of the Board. 

5 
1814946.2 



Section 8: Appointment of Recording Secretary Who Shall Also Serve as Clerk of 
the Board. 

A Recording Secretary shall be appointed by the General Manager and approved by 
the Board, and shall be an employee of the District, subject to all applicable personnel 
benefits and rules. The Recording Secretary shall also serve as Clerk of the Board. 

1814946.2 

The duties of the Recording Secretary are as follows: 

1. Accept legal service;

2. Comply with applicable laws, ordinances and procedures governing specific
duties or reports, e.g., post notices of regular and adjourned meetings, give
notices of meetings as requested, give continuing notification to the
Secretary of State and the County Clerk of the names and addresses of
Board members, and adhere to rigid time schedules;

3. Arrange for publication of materials needed (i.e., ordinances, notices of public
hearings, etc,);

4. Attend all Board meetings and prepare a draft of the minutes of the
proceedings. The Recording Secretary will include in the draft of the minutes
the arrival and departure time of Directors entering or leaving the meeting
while it is in session. The minutes shall generally include only what action
was taken and not recite verbatim statements or comments made by Board
members or others. Written or oral material shall not be included verbatim in
the minutes unless authorized by a majority of the Directors present at the
meeting. Directors desiring material to be included verbatim in the minutes
shall present such material to the Recording Secretary prior to the
commencement of the meeting. The Recording Secretary shall distribute
copies of the material to all Directors present, the General Manager and the
General Counsel prior to the commencement of the meeting. Changes, if
any, to the draft minutes shall be made following consideration by the Board
of Directors at a Board meeting. Minutes shall not become official minutes
until they are approved by the Board and signed by the Secretary;

5. Prepare and distribute agendas and supporting materials for consideration by
the Board. A draft of the agenda shall be provided to the President, the
General Manager and the General Counsel prior to preparation of the final
agenda;

6. Maintain copies of all documents authorized by the Board in the conduct of
its business, as directed by the Board;

7. Maintain indexing/retrieval systems to expedite the research for information
on prior Board actions taken;

6 



8. In consultation with the General Manager, research records and respond to
queries concerning Board action for public officials through correspondence
or personal contact;

9. Maintain a distribution list for the agenda;

10. Maintain a record of absences of Board members;

11. Determine the order of items on the agenda in consultation with others, as
appropriate;

12. Assure that material for consideration by the Board is in a format as directed
by the Board and the General Manager;

13. Perform other duties as determined by the Board.

Section 9: Items to be Considered by the Board. 

To assure orderly conduct of the business affairs of the Board, the Recording 
Secretary, under direction of the General Manager, will prepare agendas listing the items to 
be considered. Any item may be presented by any member of the Board, the General 
Manager or the General Counsel, for listing on the agenda for consideration at any future 
regular meeting. 

Items proposed for consideration at a regular meeting will be submitted to the 
Recording Secretary in final form not later than 2:00 P.M. on the Wednesday preceding the 
meeting at which the item is to be considered. Except in an emergency, items proposed for 
consideration at a special meeting will be submitted to the Recording Secretary not later 
than thirty-six (36) hours in advance of the special meeting. The Recording Secretary will 
not accept agenda material offered after the time set for receipt, except as instructed by the 
General Manager and approved by the President. 

The procedures for handling all matters to come before the Board shall be as set 
forth in the Brown Act and the terms of this Resolution. 

The final agenda shall be posted at a location freely accessible to the public and on 
the District's website, not less than 72 hours before the date and time of the noticed 
meeting. Items of business not included in the final posted agenda may be considered by 
the Board pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 54954.2. 

Section 10: Staff Reports. 

Written staff reports shall generally be required for agenda items; provided, however, 
that items determined by the General Manager to be routine may not require a written staff 

7 
1814946.2 



report to be printed as part of the agenda. In this case, an oral report may be made to the 
Board. 

Departments shall, insofar as is practical, consult with other departments and offices 
as may be appropriate relative to the particular subject before submitting a staff report for 
consideration by the Board such that necessity for referral shall be minimized. 

All supporting information for an item to be considered will be presented to the 
Recording Secretary at the same time as the staff report to which it refers. 

Section 11: Agenda for Regular Meetings. 

The agenda shall contain a brief general description of each item to be transacted or 
discussed. No action shall be taken by the Board on any item not appearing on a posted 
agenda, subject to the exceptions listed in the Brown Act. The agenda shall indicate the 
time and location of the meeting and be posted by the Recording Secretary as required by 
law. The Recording Secretary shall certify a copy of each agenda as to the fact, time and 
place of posting. 

The order of placement of items on the agenda will be at the discretion of the 
General Manager, in consultation with the Board President, who will refer to the approved 
agenda format as a guide, and also consult with Directors, General Counsel or staff, as 
necessary, relative to suggested order. Any item on the printed agenda may be taken out 
of order, following an adopted motion of the Board to do so, or by order of the presiding 
officer with the consent of a majority of the Board members present. 

Placement of consultants and General Counsel shall be prioritized and shall be 
scheduled at the beginning of the meeting. General Counsel will report at the time 
President and General Manager report or sooner if presence is not required for entire 
meeting. 

A Format 

The format or order of items to be listed on the agenda for each regular meeting 
shall be as follows, except as otherwise directed by the Board of Directors or the General 
Manager, who is authorized to exercise flexibility in establishing the order of agenda items 
to be considered at each meeting: 

1814946.2 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation;

2. Roll Call;

3. Public Comments;

4, Approval of Minutes;

8 



5. Reports;

6. Consent Calendar (including review of expenditures);

7. Old Business;

8. New Business;

9. Informational Items;

10. Board Concerns and Comments;

11. General Manager and Staff Concerns and Comments;

12. General Counsel Concerns and Comments;

13. Closed Sessions;

14. Adjournment.

B. Consent Calendar

The Consent Calendar shall be comprised of items of a routine or generally 
uncontested nature. Each item proposed for consideration as part of the Consent Calendar 
shall be described on the notice and agenda posted for the meeting. It is the policy of the 
Board that the list of expenditures determined and verified by the Treasurer to be payable 
within the annual budget approved by the Board shall be included on the Consent Calendar 
as a "receive and file" item. Items on the Consent Calendar may be acted on by the Board 
of Directors in a single motion. The approval of the Consent Calendar shall signify the 
approval of each matter or recommendation included therein. Upon request of any Board 
member, or upon the request of a member of the public made through the presiding officer, 
an item may be removed from the Consent Calendar for separate discussion and/or action. 

C. Action on Items Not Appearing on Agenda

The Board may take action on items of business not appearing on the posted 
agenda in accordance with the Brown Act, including under any of the following conditions: 

1814946.2 

1. Upon a determination by a majority vote of all members that an emergency
situation exists as defined in Government Code section 54956.5;

2. Upon a determination by a two-thirds vote, or, if less than two-thirds of the
members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that
there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to
the attention of the District subsequent to the agenda being posted;



3. The item was posted for a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more than
five (5) calendar days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the
prior meeting the item was continued to the meeting at which action is being
taken.

4. Under such other circumstances as provided and authorized by the Brown
Act.

If an item not on the agenda is proposed for consideration, facts supporting the 
determination that the matter comes within one of the foregoing provisions shall be stated 
on the record. 

Section 12: Distribution of Agendas. 

The Recording Secretary will be responsible for the distribution of the agendas, and 
will maintain the distribution list therefor. 

Except in unusual circumstances as determined by the President and General 
Manager, agenda packages prepared for the Board members and members of the press 
will be delivered no later than 5:00 P.M. on the Friday preceding the regular meeting. The 
General Manager shall immediately notify all Board members of such unusual 
circumstances. Agendas, and if available, agenda materials for special meetings shall be 
distributed at least twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting. 

Section 13: Participation by the Public. 

A Persons Addressing the Board 

Members of the public shall have the right to address the Board on any item within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. However, if an item is to be set or is set for a 
public hearing, it shall be out of order for any member of the public to address the Board on 
such item prior to the public hearing thereon, unless the remarks are confined to the 
specific question of the appropriateness of setting said item for a public hearing. At the 
time the public hearing is held, the item to be considered will be opened for public 
participation. After the public hearing is closed, no member of the general public may 
address the Board regarding the item on which the public hearing is held, unless the public 
hearing is reopened by the President. 

Any person desiring to address the Board shall, upon recognition by the presiding 
officer, proceed to address the Board for a period up to three (3) minutes. The speaker 
may, but is not required to, state his or her name and address for the record. All remarks 
and questions shall be addressed to the Board as a whole and not to a member thereof. 
No questions shall be asked of a Board member or a member of the staff without first 
obtaining the permission of the presiding officer. Impromptu personal points of order, 
comments, objections, or questions shall not be recognized, and if they persist, after the 
presiding officer has warned of the offense, a member of the public engaging in such 

10 
1814946.2 



disorderly conduct shall, at the discretion of the presiding officer or a majority of the Board, 
be subject to ejection from the meeting. The presiding officer may in the exercise of his or 
her discretion allow a speaker to exceed the three (3) minute limit for public comments, 
subject to Board direction otherwise. 

B. Decorum and Rules of Conduct

Each person addressing the Board of Directors shall do so in an orderly manner and 
shall not engage in any conduct that disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly 
conduct of the meeting. Members of the audience shall not engage in disorderly or 
boisterous conduct, including the utterance of loud, threatening, or abusive language, 
clapping, whistling, yelling, stamping of feet, or other acts which actually disturb, disrupt, 
impede, or otherwise render the orderly conduct of the Board meeting infeasible. Any 
person who so disrupts the meeting may, at the discretion of the presiding officer or a 
majority of the Board, after the presiding officer has warned of the offense, be subject to 
ejection from that meeting. 

Placards, signs, and posters may be brought into the Board room unless such 
objects disturb, disrupt, impede, or otherwise render the orderly conduct of the Board 
meeting infeasible, or block the view of any other person in attendance, in which case such 
placard, sign, or poster shall, at the discretion of the presiding officer or a majority of the 
Board of Directors present, be moved to a different location or removed from the Board 
room. 

Photographs, audiotapes, and videotapes may be taken from the rear of the Board 
room or from any seat within the Board room, so long as such activity does not disrupt and 
disturb the audience, public speakers, and Board members and interfere with the orderly 
conduct of the meeting. 

Within the Board room, all cell phone and pager ringers shall be turned off; no 
talking on cell phones is allowed; and all electronic equipment shall be operated in a 
manner which does not emit sound or disturb other members of public or disrupt the orderly 
conduct of the meeting. 

C. Enforcement and Removal of Disruptive Individuals

The presiding officer may remove, or cause the removal of, an individual for
disrupting the meeting. "Disrupting" means engaging in behavior during a meeting that 
actually disrupts, disturbs, impedes, or renders infeasible the orderly conduct of the 
meeting and includes, but is not limited to, a failure to comply with reasonable and lawful 
regulations adopted by the Board of Directors or any other law and/or engaging in behavior 
that constitutes a true threat of force. Prior to removing an individual, the presiding officer 
shall warn the individual that their behavior is disrupting the meeting and that their failure to 
cease their behavior may result in their removal. The presiding officer or their designee may 
then remove the individual if they do not promptly cease their disruptive behavior. The 
required warning does not apply to any true threat of force behavior. 

11 
1814946.2 



In the event that a meeting is willfully interrupted by a group or groups of persons so 
as to render the orderly conduct of such meeting infeasible and order cannot be restored by 
the removal of individuals who are willfully interrupting the meeting, the presiding officer 
may order the meeting room cleared and continue in session. Only matters appearing on 
the agenda may be considered in such a session. Representatives of the press or other 
news media, except those participating in the disturbance, shall be allowed to attend any 
session held pursuant to this section. The presiding officer may readmit an individual or 
individuals not responsible for willfully disturbing the orderly conduct of the meeting. 

An individual that willfully disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly 
conduct of a meeting of the Board of Directors may be deemed to have violated Penal 
Code Section 403, and a peace officer may be called for assistance when needed to 
enforce the rules of decorum and/or to remove disruptive individuals. 

Section 14: Conduct of Meetings. 

A. Legal Officer

In any case of ambiguity or uncertainty in the interpretation or application of these 
Rules to any procedure, the officer presiding may refer such question for advice to the 
Board's General Counsel who shall be the parliamentarian of the Board. Decisions on such 
interpretation or application shall rest with the presiding officer, subject to a Board motion to 
the contrary. 

B. Obtaining the Floor and Making Motions

Any member of the Board wishing to speak, or any member of the public wishing to 
address the Board, must first obtain the floor by being recognized by the officer presiding. 
The officer presiding must recognize any member of the Board who seeks the floor when 
appropriately entitled to address the Board. 

Any member of the Board, inciuding the officer presiding, may bring a matter of 
business properly before the Board by making a motion. Any member, including the officer 
presiding, except the member making the motion, may second a motion. Once a motion is 
seconded, it may be opened for discussion and debate. 

C. Voling

After a full opportunity for debate, any member of the Board may call for a vote by a 
Motion to Call the Question. Otherwise, all votes of the Board shall be by voice vote, 
except voting upon any ordinance or resolution, which shall be by roll call vote. After every 
vote the officer presiding shall declare the result, and on all but consensus votes, shall note 
for the record the number of votes for or against the question and any abstentions. Tie 
votes shall be lost motions and may be reconsidered. 

12 
1814946.2 



D. Failure to Vote/Abstentions

Members are encouraged to vote unless disqualified for legal cause. Self
disqualification, without approval, which results in a tie vote shall be avoided as a means of 
obstructing Board action, but no member shall be forced to vote. A Board member who 
abstains from voting without legal cause shall thereby consent that a majority of the 
members voting may act for the member. Members abstaining are counted towards 
quorum, but they are not counted in the tally of votes. Unless a majority vote of the total 
membership of the Board of Directors is required pursuant to State law or another policy 
adopted by the Board, when one or more Board member voluntarily abstains from a vote 
on a motion, the vote of more than one-half of those members actually voting for or against 
the item shall be sufficient to approve or disapprove the motion. 

E. Closing or Limiting Debate

At all times the Board shall endeavor to allow free and open debate. However, there 
may come times when it becomes necessary to close or limit debate so that action can be 
taken by the Board. Attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference is a Chart of 
Related Motions which may be brought to close or limit debate, or to take some other 
procedural actions as directed by the Board. Motions brought before the Board shall 
require the voting consensus set forth in the attached Chart and shall take precedence over 
the main motion where indicated. 

F. Conflicts of Interest

Any member who feels they may have a conflict of interest in any matter coming 
before the Board of Directors shall disclose said interest and disqualify themselves from 
discussing or voting on the matter. Where it is not clear whether such interest is of a 
disqualifying nature, the member shall state the facts of the matter to District's General 
Counsel and request an opinion regarding a conflict prior to the meeting. 

Section 15: Procedure for Consideration of Demands for Corrective Action. 

A. Requirement of Written Demand

Prior to any person commencing a judicial action for injunction or mandamus to 
declare any action taken by the Board void because of failure to observe Brown Act 
requirements specified in Government Code Section 54960.1 (a), such person must first 
serve upon the District a written demand describing the alleged violation and demanding 
corrective action. Such demand must be served upon the Recording Secretary within 
ninety (90) days of the complained of action unless the action was taken in open session 
and in violation of Government Code Section 54954.2, in which case the written demand 
shall be made within thirty (30) days of the complained of action. Failure to serve any such 
demand within the required period shall result in the loss of any right to challenge any 
action alleged to have been taken in violation of Sections 54953, 54954.2, 54954.5, 
54954.6, 54956 or 54956.5 of the Government Code. 

13 
1814946.2 



B. Consideration of Corrective Action

Within 30 days of receipt of such a demand,the Board shall (i) cure or correct the 
challenged action and inform the demanding party in writing of such action or (ii) inform the 
demanding party in writing of its decision not to cure or correct. A description of any item 
so placed on the agenda shall include both consideration of the demand, and the possibility 
of corrective action by the Board. 

In considering such demands, the Board shall first determine by motion whether 
corrective action should be taken. If no motion to take corrective action is carried, the 
Recording Secretary shall inform the demanding party in writing of the Board's decision not 
to cure or correct the challenged action. 

C. Implementing Corrective Action

If a motion to take corrective action passes, the officer presiding may entertain a 
motion implementing corrective action. Any motion implementing corrective action shall 
address the concerns raised in the consideration of corrective action. The motion 
implementing corrective action may include a motion to rescind prior action taken, as 
appropriate. Passage of a motion to rescind invalidates prior action only as of the time of 
the passage of the motion, and not from the date of the initial action. A motion 
implementing corrective action resulting from a written demand is out of order if the action 
complained of: (a) was in connection with the sale or issuance of notes, bonds, or other 
evidences of indebtedness, or any contract, agreement, or incident thereto; or (b) gave rise 
to a contractual obligation upon which a party has, in good faith, detrimentally relied. In any 
event, the Board shall notify the party making the demand in writing of its decision to take 
corrective action, and shall describe any corrective action taken. This notice shall be given 
to the demanding party as soon as possible after the meeting, but in no event more than 
thirty (30) days after receipt of the demand. 

D. Alternative Demand Procedure

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54960.2, a person seeking to determine the 
applicability of the Brown Act to a past action of the Board shall first submit a cease and 
desist letter by postal mail or facsimile transmission to the Recording Secretary. The cease 
and desist letter shall be submitted within nine (9) months of the alleged violation. Within 
thirty (30) days of receipt, the Board may respond to the cease and desist letter. 

Should the Board determine to issue an unconditional commitment to cease and 
desist from and not to repeat the past action alleged to constitute a Brown Act violation, the 
unconditional commitment shall be approved by the Board in open session at a regular or 
special meeting as a separate item of business and not on the consent calendar portion of 
the agenda. 

14 
1814946.2 



Section 16: Reading Papers. 

Where papers are laid before the Board, every Director has the right to read them 
before being compelled to vote on them. Whenever a Director asks for the reading of such 
paper for information, and not for delay, the officer presiding should direct it to be read. 

Section 17: Board Member Contact with Legal Counsel. 

Members of the Board are encouraged to ask questions of the District's legal 
counsel of a non-privileged and non-confidential nature during Board meetings. By doing 
so, the full Board and staff benefit from the discussion. The Board President or an 
individual Board Member may individually contact or meet with the District's legal counsel 
concerning liability matters, questions pertaining to compliance with State law or District 
policies, or other privileged matters; however, legal counsel may report the nature and/or 
substance of any such contact or meeting to the full Board, in his or her discretion, subject 
to the limitations imposed by the Brown Act. All legal research projects or matters of 
significant legal analysis should be authorized by a majority of the Board or the General 
Manager, as applicable, not by an individual Board Member. 

Section 18: Adoption of Reports. 

In order to make the findings and action of a Committee become the acts of the 
Board, a motion should be made to adopt, accept, or agree to the report. 

Section 19: Amendments. 

These Rules of Procedure may be amended from time to time by resolution passed 
by a majority of the Board. 

Section 20: Rules are Adopted for Procedural Purposes. 

The foregoing rules are adopted to expedite the transaction of the business of the 
Board in an orderly fashion, and are to be liberally construed to effectuate this purpose. 
The failure to observe strictly such rules shall not affect the jurisdiction of the Board or 
invalidate any action taken at a meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law, nor 
shall any person have a claim or cause of action against the District or any of its officers or 
employees as a result of any such failure. Except as otherwise provided by law, these 
rules or any one thereof may be suspended by order of the Board. Robert's Rules of Order 
shall not apply to meetings of the Board. If conflict(s) exist(s) between these procedures 
and another Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors relating to a specific matter, then 
the other Resolution regarding that specific matter shall prevail. 

15 
1814946.2 



MOTION DESCRIPTION 

a. Terminates debate 
Motion to and brings matter 
call the under debate to an 
question. immediate vote. 

b. Limits the amount of 
Motion to time allowed each 
limit debate. speaker or appoints a 

time in which debate 
on the main motion 
will close and question 
be out to vote. 

c. Suspends discussion 
Motion to on main motion 
table. without setting a 

definite time for 
reconsideration. 

d. Resumes discussion 
Motion to of a tabled motion. 
take from 
the table. i 

e. Continues main 
Motion to motion to a specified 
continue to future date. 
a time 
certain. 

1814946.2 

CHART OE RELATED MOTIONS 

PRECEDENCE DEBATABLE VOTE 

REQUIRED 

Over main motion. No. 2/3 vote of 
I the Board 

Members 
oresent. 

2/3 vote of 
the Board 
Members 
present. 

Over main motion. No. Same as 
required to 
pass main 
motion. 

Over main motion. No. Majority 

Over main motion. Yes. Majority 

COMMENT 

Must be made and seconded 
without interrupting one who 
has the floor. 

Must be made at same or next 
meeting as motion to table. 



MOTION DESCRIPTION PRECEDENCE DEBATABLE VOTE COMMENT 

REQUIRED 

f. Refers question to a Over main motion. Yes. Majority May contain specific 
Motion to commission or instructions for committee and 
commit or committee for further a date certain for 
refer. study. reconsideration. If not, 

restored by a motion to take 
from the table. 

g. Amends main motion Over main motion Yes. Majority (1) Only one motion to amend 
Motion to or any amendment and motion to any given amendment. (2) All 
amend. thereto. amend, if amendments and amendments 

amendment is to amendments must be 
being amended resolved before main motion 

can be voted upon. 

h. Rescinds any prior Takes its Yes. Same as (1) Does not void action from 
Motion to action taken. precedence from required to the beginning, only from point 
rescind. the motion whose pass the of rescission. (2) Motion is out 

passage is the initial motion. of order if it relates to contract 
subject of upon which another party has 
rescission. detrimentally relied, relates to 

issuance of bonded 
indebtedness or relates to the 
collection of any tax. 

i. Temporarily adjourns Over main and any Yes. Majority Should specify period of 
Motion for the meeting. pending subsidiary recess. 
recess. motion. 

j. Ends meeting. Over main and any No. Majority 
Motion to pending subsidiary 
adioum. motion. 

1814946.2 



MOTION DESCRIPTION PRECEDENCE DEBATABLE VOTE COMMENT 

REQUIRED 

k. Requires officer Over main and Yes. Determined Decision of officer presiding is 
Point of presiding to enforce pending subsidiary by officer final, unless overturned by 
order. rules of the Board. motion. pre- motion to appeal the ruling. 

sidinq. 

I. Challenges a Over main and any Yes. Majority Officer presiding may 
Motion to procedural ruling by pending subsidiary participate in debate. 
appeal the the officer presiding. motion or other 
ruling. motion of privileges, 

order or 
convenience. 

m. Allows consideration Over main motion Yes. Majority 
Motion to of matters in an order and any pending 
depart from different from that subsidiary motion. 
the agenda. appearing on the 

l aoenda. 

n. Reconsiders action Takes its Yes. Majority (1) Cannot be made on quasi-
Motion to taken previously to precedence from judicial matters or matters 
reconsider. correct errors or the motion upon requiring a noticed public 

consider previously which hearing. (2) Can only be 
unavailable reconsideration is made by a member who voted 
information. requested. with the previously prevailing 

side. (3) May be made at the 
same meeting or a subsequent 
meeting subject to the same 
restrictions as a motion to 
rescind. 

1814946.2 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MIDWAY CITY SANITARY DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, REVISING THE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors of the Midway City Sanitary District hereby finds, 
determines, declares, and resolves as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the "Board") previously established 
policies and procedures to facilitate the orderly handling of business to come 
before the Midway City Sanitary District (the "District"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board now desires to revise and update its policies and 
procedures. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MIDWAY 
CITY SANITARY DISTRICT DOES RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Amended Policies and Procedures of the Board of Directors of

the Midway City Sanitary District attached hereto as Exhibit "A" are hereby 
adopted. 

2. A copy of the Policy shall be made available to the public upon
request. 

3. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED, at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Midway 
City Sanitary District of Orange County, California, held this 16th day of January, 2024. 

� 
ATTEST: 

1 
1814156.1 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of the Midway City Sanitary District of Orange 

County, California, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No, 2024-01 was duly 

adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of said District, held on the 16th day of 

January, 2024, by the following vote of the members of the Board: 

AYES: A. Nguyen, C. Nguyen, S. Contreras, M. Nguyen 

NOES: 

ABSENT: T. Diep 

and I further certify that Mark Nguyen, as President, and Andrew Nguyen, as Secretary, 

signed and approved said Resolution on the 16th day of January, 2024. 

(District Seal) 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF ORANGE 
) ss. 
) 

I, Andrew Nguyen, Secretary of Midway City Sanitary District of Orange County, 

California, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of 

Resolution No, 2024-01 passed and adopted by the Board of Directors of said District at 

a meeting thereof held on the 16th day of January, 2024. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 

Seal of said District on the 16th day of January, 2024. 

(District Seal) 

1814156.I 




